<y

The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Denton held a Regular Scheduled Meeting

on Tuesday, September 2, 2025 at 6:00pm at Town Hall.

The following members were in attendance: Mayor Larry Ward, Mayor ProTem Deanna Grubb
Commissioners: Anne Carter Bean, Scott Morris, Hayden Hicks, Barbara Hogan

Town Attorney, Misti Whitman, Town Manager, Angel Jenkins, Town Clerk, Paula Hedrick

1. Call to Order

Mayor Ward called the meeting to order at 6:00pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Ward led the Pledge of Aliegiance
3. Adoption of Agenda

-Mayor ProTem Grubb made a motion to approve the agenda.
-Commissioner Bean seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)
4. Approval of August 4, 2025 Minutes

-Commissioner Hogan stated the section in regard to the Denton Historical Society
placing luminaries in Harrison Park is for December 24, 2025 as a fundraiser for the
Museum, not for the night of the Love Lights Ceremony.
-Commissioner Bean stated that the Board agreed to allow the VFW to meet at the Civic
Center.
-Ms. Hedrick stated several locations were mentioned. Point of Clarification that this is
the consensus of the Board to grant permission to Jeff Wood with VFW to use the
Denton Civic Center to hold meetings. Ms. Hedrick noted a vote would need to be made.
It will need to be stated if we are going to charge them the same as what we charge
others.
-Ms. Jenkins stated the motion and second on these items can be heard during
Commissioner Comments.
-Ms. Hedrick stated corrections will be made to the minutes.
-Commissioner Morris made a motion to approve August 4, 2025 minufes with the stated
corrections.
-Commissioner Hogan seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

5. Public Comment: Citizens may speak on items not listed on the printed agenda.
Please state your name and address and observe the three-minute time limit.
No one present to speak.

6. Public Hearing- Consideration to Close Two Alleyways: Parcel #0705300090017 &
#0705300090017A Petitioned by Michael and Kathy Baum at 306 Bryon Street— Angel
Jenkins '
~-Mayor Ward asked for a Motion and Second to Open Public Hearing
-Mayor ProTem Grubb made a motion to Open Public Hearing.

-Commissioner Bean seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

-Ms. Jenkins stated the Commissioners received a request from Michael and Kathy Baum at
306 Bryon Street to close two {2) alleyways located at the referenced parcels, one runs east
to west and one runs north to south, dividing their properties. The Public Hearing was

1




7

published for four consecutive weeks in The Denton Orator; notices mailed to adjacent
property owners and property was posted with Zoning Notices. Ms. Jenkins stated the staff
recommendation is to grant the alleyway closures. Ms. Jenkins stated that there are no
water or sewer easements to consider.

-Commissioner Morris confirmed that would be closing both alleyways all the way and does
the property owner have to file the closure with the County.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that once approved, the Town Attorney files with the closure with the
Register of Deeds and a copy goes to the County for processing.

~-Ms. Whitman stated that when we file the ordinance, the tax department actually

reached out to her because there's a new person handling these. The tax department by
statute are supposed to split the property based on our ordinance.

There was no one to speak for or against the closure of the two alleyways.

-Mayor Ward asked for a Motion and Second to Close Public Hearing
~-Commissioner Bean made a motion to Close Public Hearing.
-Mayor ProTem Grubb seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

. =Adopt Ordinance 0-25/26-01- Ordinance of the Board of Commissioners of The
Town of Denton to Permanently Close Two Alleyways: Parcels: 0705300090017,
0705300090006¢c, 0705300090005, 0705300090009, 0705300090001 - East/West -
Highway 109 and Bryon Street, and North/South Between Parcels 0705300090009,
0705300090012, 0705300090017, 0705300090017A

-Mayor ProTem made a motion to approve Ordinance 0-25/26-01 to close the two
alleyways listed above.

-Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

. Review proposed contract for Water Tank Maintenance with Southern Corrosion—
Noah Calhoun

Mr. Calhoun was present to speak on the exterior and interior of both Daniel Street
Water Tank and Cox Street Water Tank. Southern Corrosion performed an inspection of
both tanks July 8, 2025. Mr. Calhoun presented photos of both water tanks for review.
During Mr. Calhoun's presentation he provided details on future tank maintenance and
asset management.

» Daniel Street tank is 500,000 galions Toro ellipsoidal or a Taurus bottom water
tower. It was built by Phoenix in 2005. The high-water level is 83 feet and the low-
water level is 53 feet. The head range is 30 ft. The tank has an epoxy coating.
This coating is grandfathered in but not NSF approved.

e Cox Avenue tank, it is approximately 100,000 gallons, it was built by Chicago
Bridge and Iron in 1939. The high-water level is approximately 90 ft and the low-
water level is approximately 67 ft. The tank was resurfaced in 2018. Interior of
tank has a grease or wax coating.

Mr. Calhoun presented a plan of maintenance for interior and exterior cleaning, painting,
repairs, upkeep of the tanks, planning and budgeting for short-term or long-term needs.
Mr. Calhoun stated Southern Corrosion have professional engineers and NACE certified
inspectors on staff. Southern Corrosion recommends annual inspections, 5-year wash



outs, 10-year exterior renovations on both tanks, and 15-year interior renovations, which
includes blasting and reapplying with the epoxy.

Mr. Calhoun presented the contract cost of $55,800 annually, all subsequent year
premiums will be a total of the prior year's premium amount plus the percentage change
in the (Consumer Price Index) CPI adjusted annually after that. The confract
automatically renews annually unless canceled within 60 days of that renewal date. it is
technically a one-year renewal agreement.

- Commissioner Morris asked if it's one year renewal, why does it say we have to pay if
we cancel it?

Mr. Calhoun stated the premium is lower than the amount of work that we would be
doing in the first couple years. It's just to make sure Southern Corrosion doesn't walk
away upside down. It allows you to have a structured cost associated with this these
kinds of repairs over time.

-Commissioner Morris asked what if you go out of business?

Mr. Calhoun stated | do believe as long as there's water towers that need maintenance,
they will be in business.

-Ms. Whitman asked what is the ownership structure like at the company?

Mr. Calhoun stated Jim Skilton is the owner/president. It is co-owned with Elbert Basus.
Both of their father's started the company. Jim is in the office every single day and has
boots on the ground daily. Elbert and Jim are the soul owners. They like small
businesses, but succession plans are imporiant in small businesses.

-Mayor Ward stated he was curious to the work that you've already outlined, what is the
cost of that?

Mr. Calhoun stated for an interior and exterior renovation of the Daniel Street tank, which
is a 500,000-gallon elevated tank, it will be about $172,200 and for the Cox Avenue tank,
an interior and exterior renovation would run about $184,000. The Cox Street tank cost
more due to the striping of the interior walls and replacing it with a two-part epoxy
coating.

-Commissioner Morris stated if we chose one to do right now, what would that do to our
pricing structure?

Mr. Calhoun stated the he had only priced out doing both of them together, he would
have to reprice and provide the information for a standalone tank maintenance.

-Commissioner Bean asked if we chose one to do one right now, which one would you
recommend doing first?




Mr. Calhoun stated he believes that the Daniel Street tank would need to be addressed
first. They would need to make sure that it would not create a problem to take the tank
down.

-Mr. High stated that would not be an issue, as we have done this before.
-Mayor Ward stated this is a very interesting presentation.

~Commissioner Bean asked are there any questions, that the Board has not asked that
maybe we should.

Mr. Calhoun stated he cannot think of anything that hasn't been asked.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that she had reached out to the Town of Liberty for reference.
Liberty is currently in contract and started in 2018 tenure contract and are very satisfied
with their service.

. Review Professional Service Contract Agreement with GFT, Inc. (Formerly Tran

Systems Corporation) and review Paving Schedule — Chris Corriher

-Ms. Jenkins stated that Chris Corriher was not present. Ms. Jenkins stated when she
spoke with Mr. Corriher he had planned to be in attendance. .

Ms. Jenkins stated in the information that has been provided, Mr. Corriher is trying to
piggy back on the North Carolina Department of Transportation’s contract for AST, We
have not had luck with being added to their contract and recommendation is to move
forward with quoting this project with local paving companies on the AST, if that is the
direction the Board would like to go in.

Ms. Jenkins continued that she has not received an estimated cost for the project. Ms,
Jenkins stated she would reach out to Mr. Corriher the next day.

10.Piedmont Triad Regional Council — Weatherization Assistance Program — Mayor

Larry Ward

-Mayor Ward stated that the Piedmont Triad Regional Council (PTRC) has $3,600,000
federally funded monies that can be used for the Weatherization Assistance Program.
Mayor Ward stated that this helps low income, elderly or disabled residents and he would
like to promote this to our residents in order to provide much needed assistance. This is
an income-based program and renters can apply as well. Residents would need to
complete an application and provide photo ID, address, 12-month utility information, and
tax record for the home, and have permission from the landlord.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that Mayor Ward received information from Matt Reece at PTRC
and it basically states that they will help reduce your heating and cooling cost. They will
do an inspection of the home and look for energy efficiency measures. The application
provides a long list of items that they will check to see what a resident may qualify for.

-Commissioner Morris stated | assume our only part in this is education and publicity?
-Ms. Jenkins stated yes, we will push out on our website, our Facebook page and then
also in our newsletters just to make the people aware that this program is available.



1.

- Mayor Ward stated a lot of other counties have received a lot of funding through this
program. Davidson County has a low percentage of people that received the funding. |
think it's a good program. | think there's a lot of people here in Denton that are single
living on social security that would qualify.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that we can see if PTRC will send someone to assistance residents
with the application process.

Review and Approve Quote for Additional Kamstrup Meters and Accessories for
Residential and Master Meters — Angel Jenkins

-Ms. Jenkins stated that she has reached out to Fortiline to ask them for a print out of
everything that they have already installed and where we are in our process. As of
meeting time she had not received this information. Ms. Jenkins stated she went through
the original quote that we received and pulled in the quantities that were originally on that
quote and then what they have billed us for currently. There are still several items that
need to be installed from the original quote, and there are additions that they did not have
the specifications for when it was quoted.

Ms. Jenkins stated we talked about possibility of us having the master meters changed
out and Ms. Whitman and she actually looked through the contract with Handy to make
sure who owned the master meters based on contract. With the original quote master
meters were not included. Fortiline quoted based on what information we had on file but
some meters were discovered fo be different when the installation process started. We
provided the number of connections but until they physically inspected each meter box,
there wasn't a true picture of what was at each location. The additional materials are for
installation of the master meters and also the additional meters that we need fo finish out
the system. The last page of the quote has the actual installation cost for the additional
meters.

Ms. Jenkins stated as of right now, they still have not billed for about $100,000, which is
the difference in what this quote is.

-Commissioner Morris stated they have bill for everything except for about $100,0007

Ms. Jenkins stated she asked them by email to provide what is still available for
instaliation from the original quote. Once this information is received she will provide an
update.

Ms. Jenkins stated Fortiline is concerned with the additional tariffs as it is described on
page one of the quot, they're concerned that costs are going to start going up, they are
trying fo get us locked in on a price.

-Commissioner Morris asked are you saying that possibly the quoted price and what we
hadn't paid would cover this?

Ms. Jenkins stated that-is what I'm asking for clarification from Fortiline. .
-Commissioner asked, | guess they quoted us to what we told them?
Ms. Jenkins stated Fortiline reviewed the information we provided, and did spot checks

5




on several locations. When you have the number of meters that we have in the ground,
there is the possibility o have several different sizes of meters.

-Commissioner Morris asked, how many of these meters are in use now?
Ms. Jenkins stated the 2-inch, 3-inch, 5-inch and 8-inch.

-Ms. Garrison stated there are about 10-15 residential meters fo be installed, and a few
businesses.

-Commissioner Morris questioned if we were going to charge Handy Sanitary District for
the Master Meters. Is there anything in the contract about Handy paying for the meters?

Ms. Jenkins stated she has spoken with Mr. Hinnett with Handy Sanitary District, he does
not have issues with us changing the master meters.

Ms. Jenkins stated that it is not deemed a necessary maintenance as part of the cost of
manufacturing water, which would not allow for a split cost on the meters.

-Commissioner Morris, asked are we buying $100,000 in meters on a water system that
we are not making a dime off of, would that be correct? The contract in and of itself is an
issue. Gommissioner Morris asked Mayor Ward, when is the quarterly meeting with
Handy Sanitary District scheduled? Why don’t you tell them we are going to charge them
for the cost of meters and the cost of water?

Ms. Jenkins stated that we charge them the cost of water based on the contract and we
provide water to them without meters. We may have to put master meters on hold, if we
ask them to pay for the change out. Handy would need io have that as a budget
amendment for themselves and vote on whether or not they want to change out the
meters.

Ms. Jenkins stated everyone that in talking with our engineers, metering companies, it
has been shared that the master meters should be the Town's meters. Replacing the
master meters is the cost of us doing business

-Commissioner Morris stated normally the cost of us doing business is to make profit
where this is not.

Ms. Jenkins stated that the contract was updated in 2015.

-Ms. Whitman stated that this is correct, if the board gives me direction that we need to
attempt to do something about it we absolutely will look at it.

~-Commissioner Morris stated he thinks we need to attempt to at least get part of the meter
cost if not all the meter cost.

12, Discussion of Services for Codifying Town Ordinances- Angel Jenkins
-Ms. Jenkins stated several meetings back, we talked about our town ordinances and

that there are a lot of them are outdated and we're not even sure if we have copies of all
the updates that have been provided throughout the years. In looking at this with
Attorney Whitman and also with our Town Clerk Paula Hedrick we feel like our benefit is
to move forward looking at a service that actually does the codification of our ordinances.



They review what we have for legality or issues that have changed over the years. If
anything's in conflict with the current law, internal inconsistencies or obsolete or outdated
language they update all of that information as well.

If you've ever been to another fown's website and you look for their ordinance codes,
more than likely they use either American Legal or Civic Plus. Those are the two main
companies that do this throughout the state of North Carolina. Paula reached out to both
Civic Plus (Municode) and American Legal, she received information back on each
company and what their services can provide without really knowing how many pages of
ordinances we have. A fair estimate was provided between $9,000 and $12,000 is the
best that they can do with not knowing fully what everything is.

The codification program does have an online renewal annually of $2,000 to $3,000.
What that is, anytime there is an update for an ordinance, we send them the update and
they place these updates in our ordinance online. Once a year, they will provide us a
printed updated copy of everything, they put it in the right format where i falls in our
ordinance. They cross reference our ordinances, but they do not do away with the old
ordinance. They just show the replacement of that ordinance. We will have that history
for people to follow.

in looking at American Legal, we reached out fo them several years ago and their quote
is basically about the same $8,500 to $10,000 and they're roughly now saying it's about
$750 more for their services.

-Ms. Whitman stated she had asked Ms Jenkins and Ms. Hedrick to move forward with
getting quotes on this service. With the discovery of the issues we have with the 160D
Zoning Ordinance updates, this service would have caught the inconsistencies.

-Ms. Whitman stated that as she started trying to go through the ordinances, she realized
that is is going to be ridiculously expensive for her to have to piece mill this. so Both
companies presented have staif that do nothing but look at your code and lock at North
Carolina State law. They review the Town's ordinances and compare the two. It is easy
for them to say, "You can't do thisor this is inconsistent, or violates State or United States
law.”

That part in itself is immensely beneficial, it keeps the ordinances current moving
forward. Anytime there is an update, it is almost instant that it is updated on the website.
If you have someone that is new coming to town that wants fo open a business, it is very
easy for them to look and see exactly what the requirements are, exactly what has fo be
done. It takes all those inconsistencies out of the picture and makes it easily accessible
and updated immediately and it is all in one place. | know it is an expense, but Ms.
Whitman stated she thinks it is very necessary as soon as we can possibly do it.

-Commissioner Bean asked Ms. Whitman is this less expensive than her office providing
the services.




-Ms. Whitman stated absolutely, itt is less expensive than me going through and doing it.
Ms. Whitman stated it's going to take more hours for her go through the information,
review the ordinances, review the law and she does not have the staff time to dedicated
to the project.

-Commissioner Morris asked could any of our staff do this?

-Ms. Whitman stated no, bez:ause they are not qualified to know what the state law and
the US [aw is and whether or not there's inconsistencies.

-Ms. Jenkins stated the format that they provide the ordinances to the Town is very
professional. The format is available by going to the websites for Thomasville or
Lexington, they both used Civic Plus, Municode.

-Ms. Whitman stated you can look at Thomasville’s, it is very easy to use and user
friendly.

-Ms. Hedrick stated that she had reached out to the Clerk’s List-serve which is a
resource for clerks and the consensus showed that most of them are using Municode.

-Commissioner Bean asked what if they were working on this and then suddenly before
they were finished or even say after they're finished, somebody finds something that we
don't know right now exists. Does that mean the change can be added at that point.

-Ms. Whitman stated ves, it is part of the annual fee. Anytime there is any changes, any
issues, any new adoptions, you send it to them and they put it in the ordinanace.

~-Commissioner Morris asked what kind of turn-around time are we looking at?
-Ms. Jenkins stated 18 to 24 months per information received from the companies.

-Ms. Whitman stated that it is a big deal. It is a lot. She stated she would anticipate
Denton’s being shorter, 12 to 18 months. -

-Commissioner Morris asked how many pages do we have? Is it one or five thousand.

~-Ms. Jenkins stated she does not have an actual number but would guess less than a
thousand pages.

-Ms. Whitman stated that 18 to 24 months is including for them going through scanning it
all the information, reviewing it, doing the comparisons, coming back to the Board and
saying presenting what is missing, what maybe needed and any conflicts, correcting
issues, and us resubmitting that to them. They are saying 18 to 24 months till we're fully
up and compliant.

-Commissioner Morris stated it had not been that long ago since we redid them all.
Would we not start from there?

-Ms. Whitman stated that you redid the 160D, correct?

-Commissioner Morris stated that we have redone them within the last 20 years.



-Ms. Whitman stated you just redid 160D, right?

-Commissioner Morris responded no, we did them all within the last 20 years. We went
through the whole thing..

-Commissioner Hogan stated we had meetings between planning zoning board was here
and the Council was here.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that was the 160D update, the zoning, not the town ordinances.

-Commissioner Hogan stated he (Jesse Day) went through everything. He had a board
up here and he went through everything.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that her recommendation as staff, and she feels that Ms. Whitman
and Ms. Hedrick would say the same thing is to move forward with the Civic Plus which
is Municode.

We can definitely let you guys do research and look at those other town sites and I'll
send you examples, but | know Thomasville is one and it's easy to get to. You can
definitely look at that and we can bring this back to the table at next month's meeting it
you would prefer.

Mayor ProTem Grubb stated she knows it is a lot, from what I'm hearing, | think that we
do need it. | mean, it could have saved us already.

-Mayor ProTem Grubb made a motion to approve using Municode for Codification of the
Ordinances.

-Commissioner Bean seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

13.Consideration of Approval Resolution R-25/26-04 — Surplus Property- Water
Treatment Plant
-Ms. Jenkins R25-26/04 is being presented for consideration of approval of Town of
Denton Property surplus for the Denion Water Plant. They have a Hach Turbidimeter,
General Purpose Analyzer and a Vial for the Turbidimeter that have been taken out of
service.
-Commissioner Morris made a motion to approve R25-26/04 Town of Denton Water
Treatment Plant surplus.
-Commissioner Hogan seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)
14.Consideration of Approval Town Policies- Surveillance Information Policy — Angel
Jenkins
-Ms. Jenkins stated that the Surveillance Information Policy is being presented for
consideration. We installed the new cameras at Town Hall, the Farmers Market and
Harrison Park. In speaking with Chief James, we did not have a policy that states the
purpose of the cameras, being for surveillance. We reviewed policies from other towns,
and this is how this policy came about, We drafted it, reviewed it, sent it to Ms.
Whitman for review and then also sent it to District Attorney Mr. Frank for review.
Mr. Frank recommended stating that we would mark all areas saying that people are




entering an area that is under surveillance. That they have the option to not enter that
area if necessary. It does list our properties. It talks about who is in charge of the data,
who has access to the information, when information is released to other agencies for
whatever reason through the Police Department, and how that is handled. The
information released has to be tracked.
Ms. Jenkins stated to add future locations to the town property list to avoid updating
the policy with new locations. The policy lists what our retention and destruction policy
is, and how it is handled through the system. Not only that, but the Town Clerk being
the keeper of the records for the town will be also the keeper of the records for the
cameras.
Chief James and the Police Department would have full access to the system for
criminal investigations, {o view information when necessary and not have to access
that through the Town Cleik in order to maintain privacy of an on going investigation.
-Ms. Whitman stated we included the physical placement of the devices. It's on
purpose-built fown structures or by co-location on existing town structures. It states
including but not limited {o.
Ms. Jenkins asked if there were any questions, concerns, comments that you
anyone has about the policy?
-Commissioner Moris asked if the cameras are public record?
-Ms. Jenkins stated no, because we use them for surveillance of the properties. Some
towns have live cameras that you can pull up and watch what's going on in fown, those
are public cameras. We use the cameras for criminal protection of criminal acts, this
doesn't make it public.

-Mayor ProTem Grubb made a motion to approve Surveillance Information Policy.
-Commissioner Bean seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

15.Update to the Town of Denton Personal Policy and Procedure Manual — Section

6.2 Employment Reference Request Policy — Angel Jenkins

Ms. Jenkins stated the second policy is in regards to how we handle requests for an
employment reference request. In our employee manual under Article 1: QOrganization
Human Resource System; Section 6: should be updated to Section 6.1 Employee
Information Open Public Record and then add section 6.2 Employment Reference
Request. This basically outlines what we do as a Department Head when we get a
request for a reference. It is always best if is handled through your Human Resource
Department which is our Town Clerk.
In the cases where they verify an employee with the Police Department, those request
are more direct and by State law now, are required to personally review the employee
file This outlines what we can do in order to provide that information. There are state
laws that govern what we can and cannot say during a job reference and that is also
listed here under 4B. It protects us as an agency. If we all have the same information
and if we are following the same policy guidelines, we know going forward that there's
not any wrong information being passed out.

10

-



Do you have any questions about this policy?
Ms. Jenkins stated this comes from the North Carolina General Statute and it does say
that it prevents the disclosure of job-related information. In good faith including dates
of employment, job title and duties, their final salary and wages and information about
the employee’s job performance, reasons for separation provided in the information.
The information is factual job related and shared in good faith.
-Ms. Whitman stated it can't be subjective.
-Ms. Jenkins confirmed that is correct.
-Commissioner Morris made a motion to adopt the Town of Denton Personal Policy
and Procedure update to Section 6.2 Employment Reference Request.
-Commiissioner Bean seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)}

16. Town Department Head Reports

(Documentation attached for reference)

e Police Department — Chief Mike James e Water Treatment Plant — Jason Faunce
e Fire Department — Chief Travis Morris o \Wastewater Treatment Plant — Troy Branch
e Public Works — Michael High e Administration — Paula Hedrick

17.Town Attorney Update Ms. Whitman stated she will hold till Closed Session

18. Town Manager’s Report
Ms. Jenkins recapped multiple projects that have been in place and the status as of {o-
date. (Documentation available for reference)
-Ms. Jenkins stated that she had spoken with Keith Garner with Project Santa and he
extended a thank you for allowing the Harvest Pageant to continue and the work they
do for the community. The Harvest participants raised $1,560 and collected canned food
for their program.
-Ms. Jenkins stated she met with Mr. Summey to review his rezoning request. It was
tabled by the Planning and Zoning Board. We did have several residents present to
share their concerns for the rezoning on this property. The rezoning is for one parcel of
a two-parcel property. The main portion of the property is R8 and would not require a
rezoning for development by our permitted use table. It does allow for duplexes without
having to come before the board for approval. Depending on the project, it may trigger
the Town’s subdivision ordinance, which would have to be approved through the Board.
At the time of the Planning and Zoning Board meeting, there was not a plat map for the
project. This was a rezoning request.
-Ms. Jenkins stated the second property that came before the P & Z Board was Varner
Street. The property is located beside First Bank on Highway 109. The owners
separated the property into two parcels, in order to sell the house on Highway 109.
The back parcel will be developed. It is currently zoned Highway Business,
With the separation of the two parcels, they are both still zoning Highway business. The
Planning and Zoning Board tabled this public hearing, requesting more information on
the proposed development.
-Ms. Jenkins stated that she wanted to mention something that Ms. Hedrick skipped

11




19.

over in her administrative report. Paula Hedrcik atiended the North Carolina Association
of Municipal Clerks conference and received her North Carolina Certified Municipal
Clerk certificate.

Ms. Jenkins stated that she wanted to say to the Board that this takes a lot of work, and
dedication.

Ms. Jenkins addresses Ms. Hedrick and stated she was super proud of her for going
through this program with the School of Government and her accomplishments.
Congratulations.

Commissioner Comments / Concerns / Updates

-Commissioner Morris asked about the accessory buildings that Code Enforcement has
addressed with Citizens. Commissioner Morris stated that accessory buildings do not
require a permit.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that accessory buildings do not require a building permit but it does
require a zoning permit. In order to place an accessory building on your property, you
have to have a zoning permit that provides the setback requirements. For example,
there was a house at the end of Broad Street that placed an accessory building next to
the house. The building caught on fire and burned the side of the house. If they had
gone through the proper zoning, that may not have happened, it may have just burnt the
building, not their house. Alliance Code Enforcement addresses these issues.
-Commissioner Morris asked if they have spoken with the residents.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that residents are receiving letters. The main issue has been that
companies selling the building have fold the home owners they are not required to get a
zoning permit. They do not have to have a building permit. Fences and buildings do
require a zoning permit. You have to make sure you are not encroaching on your
neighbors. We've addressed it with those that have reached out. We have shared the
zoning information with the accessory building companies.

~-Commissioner Morris asked if we were looking for these?

-Ms. Jenkins stated Code Enforcement is looking at new buildings that have been
added and not permitted.

-Commissioner Motris asked are we going back one year, 20 years? | don't see how we
go back 20 years.

-Ms. Jenkins stated No, there's a statute of limitations that doesn't allow them to go
back that far. Most of them have been placed within the last two years. If they're too
close to the house, that's what is throwing a red flag. The unfortunate part is, some that
I've been out and inspected myself, they have nowhere else to put a building because
their land drops steep to the left, steep to the right, and there's no backyard. This is the
unfortunate part with some of the houses that are on Broad and Spring Street. They do
not have a flat parcel to put a building on.

-Ms. Jenkins stated in regards to the property on Varner Street, she has spoken with Mr.
Randall Shuler the contractor for the project and he will provide more information to the
Board regarding the plans for the property.

-Commissioner Morris asked do we have a packet we give to these people when they
come in.

12



-Ms. Jenkins replied yes. The Planning and Zoning Board does not approve a plat map
unless it is a Subdivision. Plat review is processed by the zoning officer (which is Ms.
Jenkins).

-Ms. Whitman stated, Mr. Summey contacted her as well and he said the reason he
didn't have any more information is because he really just wanted to see if it could be
rezoned and then he would decide exactly what he is going to do. He said he was going
to try to gather some additional information to help them make a better decision about
rezoning.

-Commissioner Morris stated on a rezoning request, after rezoned it is not conditional
use. Once it's rezoned you can move forward.

-Ms. Whitman stated as long as it is allowed in that zoning district.

-Commissioner Morris, stated he can bring any plan he wants and still have the right fo
change the plans.

-Ms. Whitman stated it is not binding.

-Commissioner Morris stated that is what he thought.

-Ms. Whitman that is why people don't provide a plat map for the parcel for a rezoning.
-Commissioner Morris asked, can the board even ask?

-Ms. Whitman stated that you may ask and the board may use that as a factor in
deciding whether or not they want {o grant the rezoning. Also, just because they
presented a particular project does not mean that they're bound fo do it.
-Commissioner Morris stated he wanted to verify that information.

-Ms. Whitman stated once it's rezoned, if the property was sold, they can develop the
property a different way as long as it is permitted in the zoning district.

-Commissioner Mortis stated it's rezoned forever.

-Ms. Jenkins asked if there were any additional questions.

-Commissioner Morris asked about the Bar Screen Conveyor Project.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that she has just received the contract for the Bar/Screen Conveyor
this afternoon and she and Ms. Whitman will be reviewing the wording on the contract.
-Commissioner Hogan asked if' we will see that Bar/Screen Conveyor replaced this
year?

-Commissioner Morris stated No, we aren’t going to see it. Never.

-Commissioner Morris asked Ms. Whitman, if a bond wasn'’t required when submitting a
bid on a project, "Here's the bid bond. Here's the project.”

-Ms. Whitman stated typically, yes.

-Commissioner Morris stated this company did not. Normally with the submission of a
bid, you're required to have your bond information provided, or your bid is no good, It's
not a complete bid package. Throw it out right then.

-Ms. Whitman, state that is correct.

-Commissioner Morris asked if it has to be stated in your bid pack that is the way you
require it.

-Ms. Whitman, stated she was not sure on that.

-Commissioner Morris, with Labelia | would think not. Probably if anything goes wrong
it's their fault. Okay. Well, we spent several months just waiting for her to come, several

i3




months. Commissioner Morris asked Mr. Branch, how long you been without a bar
screen?

-Ms. Branch stated 30 months.

-Commissioner Morris stated not long at all, and that's fine, should fire somebody. He
stated we should have fired them 12 months ago or longer. That is ridiculous. | hate to
get on the high horse, but that is ridiculous that he's been waiting 30 months for a bar
screen that we've had the money all along. Unacceptable.

-Ms. Jenkins stated, you have shared this and we have shared this with LaBella and
she cannot control the processes any more than I can.

-Commissioner Morris stated he did not believe her. Well, | don't believe it takes 30
months.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that she understands and hears what he is saying. But we have
been through this process and unforiunately, it's not the same world that we had pre-
COVID and North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (NC DEQ) still has
positions working from home and it is still a process. Ms. Jenkins stated that, we
received a notification today (9/02/2025) that was sent mailed Saturday, August 30,
2025 and required response by September 1, 2025 first, which was a holiday.

When we called about the notice, it was stated that we should not have received the
notice. Ms. Jenkins stated that is not acceptable however, that is what we deal with. Ms.
Jenkins stated that we are not the only ones. It's across the entire State. Everyone
received money and everyone's trying to spend money and they are short staffed. Ms.
Jenkins stated that she and Mr. Branch spoke with a representative today and they
express the same issues.

-Commissioner Morris asked what about Summey Engineering.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that she spoke with Bobby Kivett Friday and they sent back updated
information with a quote for the services. She has asked for clarification on this quote.
Mr. Kivett stated the update was to redo the proposal to connect the 10-in waterline..
Ms. Jenkins stated that more information was required for this quote to be submitted.
-Commissioner Bean asked Ms, Jenkins if she would provide dates to the statements
on the manager’s report.

Ms. Jenkins stated that she would.

~-Commissioner Morris, asked if Wooten can do the hydraulic study sooner.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that Wooten is trying to work on that. They are in the process of
mapping out the water lines now. Ms. Jenkins stated that she told them that was a top
priority.

20.Closed Session - In Accordance with the N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) Attorney/Client
Privilege
Mayor Ward asked for a motion and second to go into Closed Session,
~-Commissioner Hogan made a motion to go into Closed Session. 8:15pm
-Commissioner Morris seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)
Mayor Ward asked for a motion and second to come out of Closed Session.
-Commissioner Hogan made a motion to come out of Closed Session. 9:08pm

14



ALY

~Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

-Commissioner Morris made a motion to allow the VFW to meet at the Denton Civic

Center at no charge.
-Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

21. Announcements —

« September 11th — 9/11 Day of Remembrance — Harrison Park - 8:30am
o September 16" — Fall Litter Sweep — Harrison Park — 5:30pm
» September 27" — Bark in the Park — Harrison Park — 10am — 1pm

22. Board of Commissioners Adjournment

Mayor Ward asked for a motion and second to adjourn
-Commissioner Hogan made a motion to adjourn. 9:09pm

-Mayor ProTem Grubb seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (5/0)

\%\N\MLOW\&

Larry Ward, Mayor

Paula Hedrick, Town Clerk

15




